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SECTION I – INTRODUCTION


Background Information

Douglas County (hereafter also referred to as “the County”) located in Douglasville, Georgia is accepting proposals directly from benefit providers capable of providing self-insured group medical, Rx drugs, vision, dental and EAP services for active and retired County employees, effective 12/01/2007.  In particular, the County is interested in your company’s ability to manage costs effectively, provide network access, and deliver multiple benefit groups and quality customer service. 

Douglas County is seeking a long-term relationship directly from a health benefit plan provider.   Such carriers of interest include, but are not limited to, Aetna, CIGNA, and Blue Cross Blue Shield of Georgia. 

The County offers healthcare coverage to approximately 928 benefits-eligible employees (862 actives and 66 retirees).  At present, the County’s PPO group health coverage is administered through Administrative Solutions, Inc. 

Objectives
The County’s primary objectives are to:
· Obtain effective claims management and quality customer service at a competitive cost. 

· Offer good accessibility (access to all area hospitals, physicians and pharmacies) 
· Douglas County 

· Cobb County

· Paulding County

· Carroll County

· Fulton County 
· Dekalb County 

·   Provide competitive hospital and provider discounts
· Provide an employee Health Assessment to measure employees’ health status.
· Provide employee education on affective utilization of Health Plan.
· Provide employee Health & Wellness resources  

· The County is requesting that you provide quotes for all eligible active employees and participating retirees for the following benefits. The County is seeking equal or better coverage as outlined in the County’s December 1, 2006 Employee Health Benefit Plan Summary Plan Description.  
· PPO & HMO Multi-Option Benefit Plans  (the County would like to offer its employees both a PPO and an HMO) with a 4-Tier Benefit Group structure (See Section V, 4th bullet) 
· Prescription Drugs
· Vision

· Dental
· Specific Stop-Loss Services ($100,000 specified level) on an aggregate and non-aggregate basis. 

· EAP Services

· COBRA Administration

Responses to this RFP will serve as the basis for identifying finalists.  Therefore, you should adhere to the specifications as presented, and respond accurately and concisely to all questions.  For any question, a response that references separate communication materials will be considered unanswered. 

Finalist Selection

Responding firms are expected to set aside the presentation dates displayed below, provided you are selected as a finalist.  Finalists will be contacted by the Office of Risk & Safety to schedule presentations on one of the following dates. 
· October 16, 2007

· October 17, 2007

SECTION II – PROPOSAL PROCESS 


All questions regarding the specifications in this RFP must be in writing and directed to:

Ms. Diane E. Connors, CPPB, Purchasing Director
Douglas County Board of Commissioner

Purchasing Department

8700 Hospital Drive, 3rd Floor

Douglasville, Georgia 30134      
All telephone conversations are to be considered unofficial responses and will not be binding.  Questions verifying the RFP content, if appropriate, will be responded to in writing.  Official written responses will be emailed.

Proposers must submit all questions for clarification in writing to the contact identified above no later that October 1, 2007.  It is our intent to respond to all reasonable requests for additional information in a timely manner. 

Proposal Schedule
To allow the County appropriate time for analysis, selection and implementation of the respective medical program(s), all parties must meet the deadlines listed below.  You must respond to this RFP by the dates specified in the following schedule.  

	PRE-PROPOSAL CONFERENCE:
	September 20, 2007, Thursday, 2:00 p.m.

	WRITTEN QUESTIONS DUE:
	September 28, 2007, by 5:00 p.m.

	PROPOSAL DUE DATE:
	October 5, 2007, Friday, 2:00 p.m.

	FINALIST PRESENTATIONS:
	October 16, 2007

October 17, 2007

	ANTICIPATED AWARD DATE:
	November 6, 2007

	NOTICE OF AWARD:
	November 7, 2007


Confidentiality

 All information provided to the proposers by the County and/or its authorized representatives or vendors is strictly prohibited.  Proposers may NOT contact any County personnel without explicit written permission from the County. 
The information provided is not to be used by any proposer except in responding to the questions asked by the County in this RFP and any follow-up questions that may be submitted. 

Any information provided by the County must not be released, sold or distributed without the expressed written authorization of the County.  Information that the County deems to be proprietary and confidential includes, but is not limited to, employee and/or dependent demographic data, benefit experiences, plan designs and contracts.   All Background Accessory items must be returned with the proposals. 
Format

The County will review and evaluate each proposal carefully and individually.  Therefore, it is important that your responses to the questionnaire be clear and concise, and that responses DO NOT reference separate literature.  The RFP and appendices are formatted in Microsoft Word or Microsoft Excel. 
Proposals shall consist of one (1) original, eight (8) hard copies, and one (1) disk copy of your response, including all appendices.  If your organization wishes to provide additional information beyond that which is required by the Qualifications Statement, it should be kept to a maximum of (20) twenty pages.  Proposals shall be sealed and identified on the outside as “RFP for Group Health Benefit Coverage and Administration” and delivered by hand or mailed to be delivered by the deadline. 
Proposal Deadline
To allow adequate time for analysis, selection and implementation of the respective benefit program(s), we request your cooperation in meeting all of the specified deadlines.  It is our intent to respond to all reasonable requests for additional information and to reasonably cooperate with proposers in the development of their proposals.  
Sealed proposals must be received by the Douglas County Board of Commissioners in the County’s Purchasing Department.  All proposals are due no later than 2:00p.m. (ES/ Daylight Savings Time) on October 5, 2007.    Proposals submitted after this deadline will not be accepted.  Proposals will be opened to the public on October 5, 2007 at 3:00p.m.   
Ms. Diane E. Connors, CPPB, Purchasing Director
Douglas County Board of Commissioner
Purchasing Department

8700 Hospital Drive, 3rd Floor

Douglasville, Georgia 30134      
Clarification and Notification 

Douglas County assumes no responsibility for the cost of the preparation of your response to the Request for Proposal. Douglas County reserves the right to reject any and all proposals, and to waive technicalities and informalities, and can accept a proposal notwithstanding that any other proposal might be lower.  Further, Douglas County reserves the right in determining the successful proposer and to select a proposer whose proposed services are, in the judgment of the Board of Commissioners, most compatible with its objective.  

Period of Contract        
The County is requesting an initial contract period of 12 months, and prefers that renewal fees be guaranteed or capped for at least a 24-month period. The County is interested in establishing a long-term relationship and will give special consideration to proposals that offer extended renewal guarantees or caps beyond the initial 12 months.
Renewal 

Notwithstanding any provision in the contract(s) to the contrary, and with which the County is in agreement, proposers shall give written notice to the County, stating specifically the amount of fee change proposed, no later than 90 days preceding the December 1, 2008 renewal date, and 120 days prior to each renewal date thereafter. All proposed changes, or consideration, must have a valid notice stating the exact amount of the change, the formula for calculating such change, and claims and utilization data supporting the need for the change. The County will require these provisions to be specifically stated in the contract.

Effective Date

The anticipated effective date for implementation of the plans is December 1, 2007.                                                         

Takeover

Your proposal must assume administration for claims incurred on or after December 1, 2007.

In the event of a change in insurance coverage, Douglas County expects no employee’s position on organ transplant waiting list or other benefits to be jeopardized.  

No employee currently covered will lose coverage due to the change in carriers. Any employee not actively at work who has continued coverage (i.e., leave of absence) will be treated similarly to a COBRA participant and will be allowed to make elections during the enrollment period. 
Commission
1. Proposers must certify that no agent or broker commission fees will be paid to any individual, organization or entity in connection with the writing or placement of this agreement.
2. Proposers must state the effect of member enrollment fluctuation, if any, on all plan costs, charges and factors. 

Financial Solvency 

1. Proposers should also indicate their A.M. Best’s, or other rating agency’s rating, as well as that of any Reinsurer recommended in their proposals.

2. A copy of your firm’s most recent financial statements should be enclosed with your proposal. 

Douglas County reserves the right to request and/or require additional financial information in its effort to ensure financial solvency. 

Communications and Employee Education

Please describe any services, and any related costs if not included elsewhere in your proposal, you are offering with the following:

1. Assisting in the preparation and printing, in a compatible form which is satisfactory to Douglas County, of all set-up, initial and subsequent supplies  of employee communication materials, including but not limited to, employee booklets (Summary Plan Descriptions), certificates, enrollment and claim forms, explanation of benefits forms, and identification cards.
2. Describe any mailings you may submit to Douglas County employees on an ongoing basis in support of the plan(s), such as newsletters, bulletins, and announcements. 

3. Explain the extent in which your representatives will be available to assist in meetings with staff, employees, initial and open enrollment, installation of the program, establishing administrative procedures, resolving claims issues and explaining claim submissions.  

4. What material will you provide for the communication, conversion, administration, and enrollment of the Plan?  Are there additional costs to the County for these materials?

5. Describe the courses, materials, and other Health and Wellness resources to be provided.  Are there additional costs to the County for these materials? 

Samples of these materials (not necessarily specific to Douglas County) should be included with your proposal. 
It is expected that all materials and resources to prepare, educate, implement and administer Douglas County’s Health Plan be available and ready for use by November 8, 2007. 
Proposal Packages must include:  
1. Most recent annual report/audited financial statements

2. Sample Point-of-Service Plan agreement  
3. Sample PPO (Preferred Provider Organization) agreement.

4. Sample HMO (Health Maintenance Organization) agreement.
SECTION III – PROPOSAL REQUIRMENTS 


Funding and Fee Structure

Medical, dental, vision, prescription drugs, and EAP services will be self-insured.  All fees including administration utilization, case management, and network access should be quoted on a “per employee/per month basis.”   Stop-loss will be fully insured. 

Right to Audit

By submitting a proposal, you understand the County’s right and agree to allow the County to audit claims files, eligibility records, and/or financial accounting data by a third party when deemed appropriate by the County.  The County requires and proposers and vendors agree to cooperate with any such third-party audits and pay for a portion of the audits as agreed upon. 

If, at any time, the County conducts an investigation or audit of the vendor’s service as a result of substantial employee or provider complaints, the investigation and the expenses required to remedy inadequacies found, will be at the vendor’s expense. 
Proposal Deviation

Your proposal should adhere to the current plan designs and services included in the RFP.  All plan design deviations must be noted clearly on Appendix A. 

Performance Guarantee

The County intends to implement a performance guarantee agreement with the benefit plan group/ administrator. Your proposal should include proposed performance standards and financial guarantees. The performance agreement must include standards for claims turnaround, employee satisfaction, payment dollar accuracy, financial accuracy, call abandonment rates, average speed to answer, timeliness of reporting, and account management. 
Proposal Responses
Proposers must agree that all questionnaire responses, supplemental information, exhibits, and other documentation can be incorporated into the resulting contract with the County. Contract language will be specific to selected coverage and final vendor negotiations, and will be incorporated by reference or attachment, as appropriate.
Data Processing/Management Information System Requirements
The successful proposer will be responsible for preparing periodic management reports for Douglas County's use.  Douglas County requires monthly Claims Summaries, quarterly (medical, dental pharmacy) claim summaries and savings, and annual summaries to include, but not limited to, medical claims by classification and product, network(s) utilization, trend analysis, claim summaries, in & out-of-network summaries with amounts paid,  and top twenty  inpatient & outpatient network providers. 
1. Does your system have a capability to flag claims on newborns, to notify participants to add dependent coverage, and also to flag dependents at age 19 (or 25 if a full time student) for status change notification? Please describe how notification and student certification are handled, including the employer's role, if any in the process.

2. For what length of time do you maintain historical data files?  All files are to be maintained by vendor at vendor’s expense, and files may be converted to CD’s as legally prescribed. 
3. Briefly describe your back-up and security systems procedures and disaster recovery plan.
4. The successful proposer will be required to provide detailed large claims data. Discuss your system for providing this data and include sample large claims reports if available.  Please indicate how HIPPA requirements are handled in this instance.

5. Explain how your system manages the following:
a) Monthly paid claim listings-summarized by coverage showing paid and incurred date and any discounts.

b) Utilization reports calculated in actual numbers as well as cases per 1,000 or days per 1,000.

c) Aggregate diagnoses by different diagnostic clusters (i.e. all heart disease judged to be related to lifestyle factors).

d) Statistical tests of significance on utilization reports to determine if specific areas are significantly higher or lower than the norm.

e) Describe any additional features or information your system is able to provide.

f) If provided, explain how employees access their individual accounts within your system and describe what information and/or data employees are able to access and what changes can be made at any given time.  

6. Prepare a flow chart of your claims administration process from the point an employee incurs a medical expense through final settlement. Identify the actions necessary at each step and the party responsible for identifying coordination of benefit and subrogation action requirements. Is there an audit check of this activity and the results?

Utilization Management

Please explain your Utilization Management Plans and identify any variations that apply to out-of-network and out-of-area services and HMO verses PPO. 
Hospital Pre-Admission / Admission Review

1. Describe the process you presently use to conduct pre-admission reviews.  Be specific and include your rationale for critical steps in the process. 

2. Who receives copies of the notice of certification or non-certification (denial)?

3. How do you develop your admission criteria?  How do you maintain and enhance these criteria?  Who is responsible for this function?
4. How do you develop your length-of-stay criteria information and how do you use it? 

5. Describe your process for pre-determination of medical claims.  In medical claims (especially surgical procedures), please provide useful information to participants concerning potential excess of usual and customary charges. 
Concurrent Review

6. Describe your concurrent review process including timing of the review. 

7. Do you offer on-site review at area hospitals?  If so, please indicate at which facilities. Define the criteria trigger for on-site reviews. 

8. Does the same Nurse Reviewer follow a case from admission through discharge?  Why or why not?

9. How does the PCP (Primary Care Physician) get involved in the review process? 

Surgical Appropriateness Review

10. Describe your process for reviewing the appropriateness of inpatient surgical procedures.  Be specific and include your rationale for critical steps in the process.

Large Case Management

11. When and how is a case identified as a potential case for large case management?  
12. Is the trigger for large case management manual or automated?

Other

13. What are your requirements for providing emergency and urgent care services?  Specify the member’s responsibility and the provider’s responsibility (both physician and hospital). 

14. How is out-of-network emergency care both in and out of your service area reimbursed under your programs. 
15. What pre-admission authorization is required for inpatient and outpatient for in-network services and out-of-network services?  Who is responsible for referral to specialty doctors?

16. What procedures are used to track appropriate coding of claims by procedures, and duplicates?  Does your computer system perform any of these automatically?

17. Provide a complete current list of prescription drugs that require pre-authorization, and a detailed description of the pre-authorization process and requirements for receiving the drugs. 

Health & Wellness Program Assistance

It is an objective of Douglas County to provide Health and Wellness services and resources to its employees.  

1. Please explain how and what services your organization will provide for Health and Wellness. 

2. If applicable, please describe how improvements in employee health and wellness is measured and what, if any rate discounts are afforded when goals are reached. 

3. Describe in detail, what health and wellness benefits are included in your proposal.  Examples of desired Health and Wellness resources include, but are not limited to, Smoking Cessation education, newsletters, Birth Line Service (i.e. Prenatal Education), employee health assessments, Health and Wellness poster programs, and on-site employee development training.  
4. What prevention benefits are included with your proposal, such as annual physical exams, well-child visits, diagnostic testing, Health Fairs, employee education on the utilization of benefits and other benefits? 

SECTION IV – SELECTION CRITERIA 


Douglas County is highly committed to developing and maintaining a benefit program that promotes high-quality, cost-effective, patient-oriented care.  The overall evaluation of proposals will focus on the following:

Financial Efficiency and Cost Management  
Focal points include cost savings through plan management and utilization controls, competitive fees with those provided by other vendors (although lowest cost is not a binding decision-making factor) and attractive/competitive provider and hospital discounts. Douglas County encourages vendors to guarantee service fees in two-year cycles.  
Network Access and Quality

Evaluation will include a demonstrated ability to deliver cost-effective and quality care. The network should provide a broad spectrum of network access for local providers and hospitals of Douglas County. Networks should demonstrate wi11ingness to enhance networks in areas currently lacking in provider coverage, if any. There should be evidence of providing quality care, including but not limited to, hospital and physician evaluation, accreditation, and training in the various aspects of providing quality care.
Claims and Member / Customer Service

The ability to deliver high quality customer service is important. Customer service representatives must be courteous, knowledgeable and well trained. Performance standards should be established to evaluate and routinely monitor the claims and customer service personnel.
Account Management

The account executive and service managers must be highly qualified, experienced and responsive.  Stability and consistency in these roles are important.  Consideration will be given as to the account executive’s ability to make independent decisions and provide a degree of flexibility.  
Implementation

Commitment to a smooth and on-time implementation process should be demonstrated through a detailed implementation plan and timeline, experienced staffing and appropriate performance guarantees as stipulated in the Takeover section in Section II. 
Performance Guarantee Criteria
Performance in the areas of claim payment accuracy, claim turnaround, customer service, and account management is guaranteed through financial incentives. 

Organizational Stability and Client References

Annual financial reports or other documentation must demonstrate long-term financial stability.  Current and former customers provide positive references. 

Administration and Reporting
A sophisticated and efficient system should be utilized including batch processing of claims, electronic submission of claims, and the ability to electronically transfer claims and eligibility data to and from the County.  Comprehensive and timely management reporting capabilities are to be provided.  HIPPA compliance is required. 

RFP Response
Professionalism and responsiveness to the requirements set forth in the RFP are expected. 

SECTION V – PLAN SPECIFICATIONS 


1. Vision and Dental are packaged with Medical coverage; coverage should be quoted as a package and on a standalone basis.

2. Both PPO and HMO plans should be quoted separately as the County aspires to offer both plans to its employees. 

3. Both PPO and HMO plans should include a 4-Tier Benefit Group structure:  
1. Employee rate

2. Employee + Spouse rate   

3. Employee + Child rate      

4. Family rate

4. Fees and premium-equivalent rates should be quoted on a “per employee / per month” basis and is encouraged to be in two-year cycles.  
5. You should indicate the number of providers and hospitals by county.
6. You should indicate which of the following hospitals are included in the network(s). 

1. Douglas General 

2. Cobb Hospital

3. Tanner Medical Center

4. Kennestone Hospital

5. St. Joseph Hospital

6. Piedmont Hospital

7. Northside Hospital

8. Paulding Hospital
9. Grady Memorial Hospital

10. Emory Crawford Long Hospital     
7. Copies of your network directories should be provided for each county listed under Section I- INTRODUCTION, Objectives.  Directories for other network providers in the Atlanta-metropolitan area are encouraged. 
PBM Services   (Prescription Drug Management Services)

1. Prescription drug management should be quoted on a standalone basis. 

2. Fees should be quoted on a “per script” basis.

3. List major retailers (e.g. Target, Wal*Mart, Rite-Aid) that are included in the network. 
4. You should provide your complete formulary list and indicate which drugs are multi-source brands.  
5. Discounts should be provided for retail and mail order, generic and brand drugs.
6. A further discount through mail ordering (e.g. Express Scripts) is encouraged for 3-month supply prescriptions. 
Vision               
1. Vision coverage is packaged with the medical coverage.

2. Fees and premium equivalent rates should be quoted on a “per employee / per month” basis.

3. Please quote separate from dental 
Dental              
1. Dental benefits should be quoted on a standalone basis.

2. Fees and premium equivalent rates should be quoted on a “per employee / per month” basis. 

3. A sample copy of your stop-loss contract should be provided.

4. Rates should be quoted on the following basis:  24/12

5. Dental claims should be paid on a usual and customary basis. 

6. Stop-loss coverage should include medical and Rx. 
7. Rates should be quoted for $100,000

EAP

· The following EAP services should be provided:

1. Counseling

2. Referral Services

3. On-site consultation

4. Supervisory referral procedures / participation

5. Training

6. Specialized training for administrators

7. EAP coordination and promotion

8. Reporting services

· Rates should be quoted on a “per employee / per month” basis. 
COBRA Administration
· Management and administration of COBRA for all employees that may become eligible. 

SECTION VI – ADDENDUMS

Appendices
Proposers are given the opportunity in the below appendices to explain, describe and/or emphasize deviations, caveats and quote assumptions.   While additional pages may be added to provide space for additional information, proposers should reference the section number and subsection when providing such information.  A second appendix is allowed to provide for exhibits. 
A. Deviations, Caveats and Quote assumptions                              (See page 13 of this RFP)
B. Exhibits (e.g. rates, benefit groups, other material)                    (See page 14 of this RFP) 
Background Accessories      (Unattached) 
Four accessory documents are available to Proposers in order to better understand current claims, costs, policies and procedures.  Provided by the Purchasing Department, the background accessories should be used to replicate or improve upon current benefits, costs and reports. The county is seeking equal or better benefits at competitive rates and associated costs.  All background accessories must be turned-in with final proposals.  Deviations from Accessories should be explained in Appendix A.  
1. Summary Plan Description (SPD) Effective December 1, 2006. The  Employee Health Benefit Plan booklet is provided to all Douglas County benefits-eligible employees.  Proposers should use this booklet as a template for the County’s desired benefits while at the same time adhering to the criteria set forth in this RFP.   
2. Health Plan Benefits Report, Douglas County Board of Commissioners; (December 1, 2005 – November 30, 2006) & (December 1, 2006 – August 31, 2007).   Douglas County’s Employee Health Benefit report is provided to vendors for the purpose of plan design.  The report should be used to estimate projected claims and costs.  It is also intended to illustrate current reporting methods and reports.   Reports found within this booklet include:  

· Aggregate Report

· Highest Claimant Report

· Diagnosis Report

· Benefit Code Report

· Claim Dental Report

· Hospital Cost Report
3. Dental Experience (July 1, 2007 – June 30, 2007): This report illustrates the claims paid experience for benefit group. 
4. Insurance Report (September 7, 2007)  This report contains the date or birth, gender, coverage and the total number of employee covered. 
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